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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
 
Relating to dyslexia screenings and training for teachers and other staff; to credentials for 
dyslexia specialists; and to provide for a report to the legislative management 
 

Minutes:                                                 Attachment  1-7. 

 
Chairman Owens:  Reopened the hearing on HB 1461.  Afternoon testimony continuing on 
HB 146, is there any other support?  
 
Testimony in support submitted but did not give oral testimony:  
 
Susan Longwell-Gietzen, Reading specialist in Bismarck Public: (Attachment 1) 
 
Leanne Schmidt:  State employee.  (Attachment 2). 
 
Justine Gibbon, Elementary Reading Teacher in North Dakota.  (Attachment 3) 
 
Susan Longwell, Reading Specialist in Bismarck Public Schools. (Attachment 4) 
 
Meg Lindholm, Parent.  (Attachment 5) 
 
Chairman Owens:  Is there any other support for HB 1461?   Is there any opposition?  Any 
neutral testimony? 
 
Russ Ziegler, North Dakota Council for Educational Leaders:  Presented neutral 
testimony for HB 1461.  (Attachment 6)   6:02 
 
 
Rep. Michelle Strinden:  You mentioned the screening and the professional development, 
with regard to the credential do you have a position on the credential? 
 
Russ Ziegler: Yes, we do have, on what is it going to take.  The credentials shouldn’t be 
something that can be done in a day or two.  We want to give the schools time so we get the 
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right people in the right positions with the right training behind them.  With only 8 REAs in the 
state I am not sure they would have enough staff to cover all the schools and have a qualified 
person. 
 
Rep. Michelle Strinden:  If those people were trained independently on their own merit and 
finances, would you be opposed to them serving at an REA in that capacity.  That is what 
the credential would provide, a way for DPI to put someone in the building with a credential. 
8:30 
 
Russ Ziegler:  No we would not be opposed.  Talked about personal family disability.  Our 
position would be to have a task force and work this out, it is a large problem. 9:00 – 10:50 
 
Rep. Mary Johnson:  How many screenings do schools do and for what? 
 
Russ Ziegler:  I will defer that question to Tracy Klein. 
  
Chairman Owens:  I would like to mention Section 1 in the bill, it is just DPI you will provide 
credentials so that will not affect the schools or the districts.  Section 2 you mentioned 
screening and professional development as the cost, what about paragraph 2 and 4 on page 
2.  The school board may contract and employ…It says may so they don’t have to. 
 
Russ Ziegler: Schools currently contract with outside agencies at times.  Such as 
occupational or speech therapy.  It could be a cost issue if the child qualifies for special 
education.  Then that cost could possibly be covered and would be a cost on the district.  
Under paragraph 4 in section 2 where every student would have to receive instruction 
whether they so choose.   
 
Chairman Owens:   Then the training I already figured out the 1 hour was a $1 million.  You 
confirmed my math.  Is there any further questions?  Seeing none.  Anyone else here in 
neutral position? 
 
Tracy Klein, Student Services Director, Morton-Sioux Special Education Unit: (See 
Attachment 7)   I have changed my position to neutral on HB 1461.  (14:40-20:30) 
 
Chairman Owens:  Any questions?  
 
Rep. Longmuir:  You heard the testimony that schools avoid the word dyslexia, is that what 
you see? 
 
Tracy Klein:  In the staff I work with if we talk about dyslexia we talk about it as a reading 
disability and what is the issue we need to try to remediate.  Is it decoding, processing or 
comprehension.   It is a reading associated disability what are we going to do for intervention. 
21:00 – 21:30 
 
Rep. Mary Johnson: You say both the assessment process and reading difficulties 
associated with dyslexia are encompassed in the code of Federal Regulations.  What does 
that mean?  Evaluation is one thing but does the code provide for specialized education for 
dyslexia or recommendation or requirement? 21:40 -  22:20. 
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Tracy Klein:   In the regulations dyslexia is specifically listed as one of the reading disability 
areas.   Just as with any area of need there is a process that assesses that area. You would 
first need parental consent.  Then you do a profile, that would lead to a broader assessment 
tool.  Then within that test there would be some standardized scores to compare with from 
across the nation.  Then you could find where they come up to.  If the scores are low then 
we go on further to do more diagnostic testing so we can identify the area and can develop 
and Individual education plan to get at the problem. 
 
Rep. Mary Johnson:   So the code does not prescribe any special education for these 
individual assessments? 
 
Tracy Klein:  No, as soon as you pick one curriculum or one approach you are then 
discarding the broader issue of the problem you are trying to resolve.  One size does not fit 
all.  end 25:20 
 
Rep. Mary Johnson:  In your experience is there a lot of children that are not identified and 
helped?   
 
Tracy Klein:  Yes as not identified as having dyslexia but are identified as having a reading 
disability.  
 
Rep. Michelle Strinden:   It is clear there is an issue.  Help us understand about children 
that have above average intelligence who may not need an IEP.  How could this fit into just 
regular education relating to 504 services and also just a credential.  A credential could be 
helpful to provide reading specialty for dyslexic students apart from IEP’s.  25:50-26:55 
 
Tracy Klein:  If we are screening all kids before the 2nd grade.  That is a primary function we 
are going to identify those kids that have some kind of reading difficulty which may not be 
dyslexia.  We pretty much do that already with our testing.   The problem is getting at the 
specific of dyslexia.  It impacts general Ed by they need to be trained on the Orton-
Guillingham methodology that is being promoted by this bill.  27:00-28:00 
 
Rep. Michelle Strinden:  Would that be helped by providing a code within DPI so they could 
provide that, the credential? 
 
Tracy Klein:  No, because I want to represent all kids that have needs.  Unless we can write 
a century code for each different disability it wouldn’t work.  My biggest apprehension on of 
this bill is we are beginning to write individual codes for individual needs and individual 
disability areas.  I fully support we need to have more training and be better equipped to help 
the dyslexic students. U of Mary does have 5 different reading classes for training for reading 
disabilities.    end 30:10 
 
Rep. Andrew Marschall:  Who has determined dyslexia is primarily a reading disorder 
because as one who is dyslexic, it is more than just reading.   It is more remembering certain 
things.  
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Tracy Klein:  Yes there are all different varieties of processing disorders.  Dyslexia falls 
under a learning disability and it could be a disability in the area of reading or math.  When I 
am talking about Federal codes that is where dyslexia fits.   
 
Rep. Andrew Marschall:  So it is not just reading?  
 
Tracy Klein:  Yes it can be different areas.  Reading has the higher incidence than the other 
areas.  We need to move away from remediation and start looking at accommodation 
because we hear about low self-esteem.  We need to help them find their strengths as well.   
end 33:00 
 
Chairman Owens:  It was mentioned about existing testing of the children early on.  To what 
end does it get you close to reading problems or dyslexia problems? 
  
Tracy Klein:    It is fairly broad based so it looks at all academic areas.  They map problems 
and strengths and weaknesses.  Most districts are doing progress monitoring.  We want to 
get to the problem early to get the help the student needs.  34:45 
 
Chairman Owens:   
With credentialing under Every Child Succeeds reading specialist doesn’t’ have to be 
credentialed anymore?  If you are an elementary teacher,  you qualify to teach reading which 
surprises be.  I haven’t seen that an elementary teacher has been trained to identify the 
specific problems and know what to do about these problems. Do you see this as a problem?  
We are getting away from Title 1 trained teachers. 
 
Tracy Klein:  Yes.  The reason why we are moving away from those, is because we are 
functioning with vacancies.  It is better to have someone that is generally trained and give 
them addition al training on the job then have no one there.  36:30 
 
Chairman Owens:  I understand the shortage of staff.  Any questions?    Any other neutral 
testimony?  Seeing none.  Closed  the hearing. 
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Chairman Owens:  Any further discussion?    
 
Rep.  Pyle:  I will support the amendments.  I think this type of teaching might be a great way 
for every learner.  We also offer eye testing every year and I am not sure if that is mandated.  
I am excited about the screening part, let’s catch it first.  
 
Rep. Mary Johnson:   If the children come from a socioeconomic background that can’t 
afford to do anything even if they are screened they will fall through the cracks.  
 
 
Chairman Owens:  That is why it is good with the Special Ed part of this because of the IEP 
it would help them.  
 
Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  We need to look at this carefully.  On line 4 and 
lines 23-28.  This is under the screening portion, if I am understanding it this is beyond the 
screening portion and putting in the service.  Which is redundant when you go to page 3 and 
look at training teachers, administrators and ancillary interventions.  I think that should not 
be under the screening item.  It should only be on page 3.  One is screening and one is 
training.  We really need to look at that. 30:00  
 
Chairman Owens:  But both of them refer to providing dyslexia intervention services to the 
student.   
  
Rep. Michelle Strinden:  I will explain my amendment again.  I would move the amendment 
to HB 1461 to remove on page 2 section 2 lines 22-28 and renumber accordingly and to 
insert in line 26 “employed or contracted by the school” strike the word “shall” and add the 
word “may” provide dyslexia intervention services to the student”  and removing in Page 2 
section 2 lines 23-28 and renumber accordingly.  
 
Rep. Zubke:  Seconded.   
 
Chairman Owens:  We have the same motion and second.  Any further discussion?   Seeing 
none. 
 
Voice vote:  Motion carried to amend HB 1461. 
 
Rep. LaurieBeth Hager:  The second grade on page 2 line 11.  Is that the end point are we 
going to be identifiable by second grade.  Is that long enough and if it shows up in fourth 
grade what do they do?  Do we want by or through the second grade?     33:30 
 
Rep. Michelle Strinden:  It is through the second grade. 
 
Chairman Owens:  We have the amended bill before us what are your wishes? 
 
Rep. Pyle:  I make a motion for a Do Pass HB 1461 as amended. 
 
Rep. Marschall:  Seconded. 
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Chairman Owens:  Any further discussion?   Seeing none.  The clerk will call the roll for a 
Do pass as amended for HB 1461.  
 
Roll call vote taken:  Yes    13   No     0   Absent 1.   Motion carried. 
 
Rep. Pyle:  Will carry the bill.   
 
Hearing closed.  
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